Saut g aluck
X EST. 1868

2020 ADVISORY TRI-COMMUNITY RECYCLING AD HOC COMMITTEE

AGENDA
MONDAY, MAY 18, 2020 - 2:00 P.M.

This public meeting will be held using Zoom video/audio conference technology due to the COVID-19 restrictions

currently in place.

Join Zoom Meeting (one click):
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83609303869?pwd=VEINMFY 5bGR2bHM30ThGc27ZZa2tBUT09
or
https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kdw6ZrgbLA
Enter Meeting ID: 836 0930 3869
Enter Password: 041693

Join by phone by dialing: (312) 626-6799 -or- (646) 588-8656. Then enter “Meeting ID”’:
836 0930 3869

10.

CALL TO ORDER
ROLL CALL

PUBLIC COMMENT (LIMIT 3 MINUTES) Use the “raise hand” button in the participants
screen in the Zoom interface or enter *9 if you are calling in by phone to raise hand.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES:
A. April 24,2020

APPROVAL OF AGENDA
UNFINISHED BUSINESS

NEW BUSINESS

A. Review City of Saugatuck & City of the Village of Douglas Republic Contracts
B. Discussion of Survey Constituents and Business Owners

C. Pursuing Possible Grant Monies

NEXT STEPS

PUBLIC COMMENT (LIMIT 3 MINUTES) Use the “raise hand” button in the participants
screen in the Zoom interface or enter *9 if you are calling in by phone to raise hand.

ADJOURN

City of Saugatuck 102 Butler Street ¢ P.O. Box 86 * Saugatuck, Ml 49453
Phone: 269-857-2603 ® Website: www.saugatuckcity.com




4.A.

PROPOSED Minutes
2020 Advisory Tri-Community Recycling
Ad Hoc Committee Meeting

April 24, 2020
1. Call to Order by Chairperson Lewis at 2:00 p.m. via Zcom video/audio conference technology
due to the COVID-19 restrictions currently in place.

2, Attendance
Present — Saugatuck Township: Daniel DeFranco, Mark Epstein, Patrick Stewart,
Saugatuck City: Garnet Lewis, Linda Escott, Barry Johnson
Douglas City: Ronna Alexander, Cathy North, Demetrthea Terrien
Absent: None

Committee Member Johnson entered into session at 2:13 p.m.
3. Public Comment: None

4, Approval of Minutes:
A. April 16, 2020: A motion was made by Terrien, 2™ by Alexander, to approve the April 16,
2020 minutes as presented. Upon roll call the motion carried unanimously.

5. Approval of Agenda: A motion was made by North, 2 by Escott, to approve the agenda as
presented. Upoen roll call the motion carried unanimously,

6. Unfinished Business: None

7. New Business:

A. Ken Freestone Presentation: Ken Freestone is a resident and employee of the City of
Holland and has been working with the city of Holland on implementing new recycling practices to better
manage the materials that are recycled due to the changing national and international recycling markets
and shared his ideas with this committee to help implement a program for the tri-communities.

8. Next Steps:
A. Open Committee Discussion:
1) Invite Hannah Huggett to share the process she implemented at Black River School
2) Learn more about a community composting project
3} More discussion regarding the recycling of Styrofoam, lightbulbs and batteries
4} Discuss what committee hopes to have accomplished by December

9. Public Comment: None

10. Adjournment: A motion was made by Epstein, 2™ by Escott, to adjourn the meeting at 3:30 p.m.
Upon roll call the motion carried unanimously.

Respectfully Submitted,

Monica Nagel, CMC
City Clerk



AMENDMENT TO WASTE SERVICES AGREEMENT

Effective this 26 day of August, 2019, this Amendment to Waste Services Apreernent
(“Amendment”) is made by and between the City of Saugatuck (the “City™), a Michigan
municipal corporation with offices located at 102 Butler St., Saugatuck, MI 49453 and Allied
Waste Services, Inc,, DBA Republic Services of Holland (the “Contracior™), a Delaware
corporation with offices located at 4368 GO'™ Street Holland, MI 49423,

RECITALS

A, On or about September 22, 2008 the City and Chef Container, LLC entered into a Waste
Services Agreement for the exclusive collection, transfer and disposal of certain garbage and
trash and recyclable materials from residences and participating units within the City. A copy of
the Agreement is attached as Exhibit A (the “Agreement™).

B. in 2018, with the City’s consent and approval, the Chel Container’s rights and
obligations under the Apreement were assigned to and accepted by the Contractor.

C. The Contractor has requested that the City amend the Agreement 1o extend the current
term and to add other provisions and the City is amenable to the same consistent with the terms
and conditions of this Amendment.

D. It is the imention of the partics that except as expressly set forth in this Amendment, all
lerms and conditions of the Agreement shall remain binding and in effect.

L. The City Council has éoncludcd that entering into this Amendment is in the best interest
of the City and its sesidents and that the City wishes to lake advantage of favorable pricing
offered by the Contractor.,

AGREEMENT

Now, therefore, for pood and valusble consideration in and referred 10 herein, the
sufficiency of which is acknowledged, the parties agree as lollows:

I Amendment of Section 2.02, Section 2.02 of the Agreement is amended to read in full as
follows:

The Contractor shall collect and transport Yard Wasle and Bulk Refuse from a
Participating Unit upon the request of the owner or occupant of the Pasticipaling
Unit and shall collect and transport Recyclable Materials one time every four
weeks upon request and shall deliver the same as follows: Recyclable Materials
shall be delivered 10 an appropriate recycling facility; Yard Waste shall be
delivered Lo an appropriate disposal, recycling, or composting facility; and Butk
Refuse shall be delivered to a properly licensed sold waste disposal facility. The

[09805-004-00097241 1)



2

3.

4

follows:

Contractor shall be solely responsible to bill and collect its charges for such
services from such owners or occupants.

Amendment of Section 4.0]. Seclion 4.01 of the Agreement is amended to read in full as
follaws:

The Contractor, at its own expense, shall provide Participating Units with the
following:

1) 32 or 95 gallon sold waste container(s) that are clean, watertight, and insect
and vermin proof (Refuse Containers™);

2) 95 gallon container for Yord Waste (“Yard Waste Containers™); and,
3) 95 gallon container for Recyclable Materials.

The Contractor shall not be required to collect any Domestic Solid Waste if not
properly contained in a Refuse Container. The Contractor agrees that a trash bag
up to 32 gallons and containing up to 50 pounds of Domestic Solid Waste may be
placed in a Refuse Container. Further, Contractor agrees that a 95 gallon Refuse
Container may contain up to 250 pounds of Domestic Solid Waste. The
Contractor shall not be required to collect any Yard Waste not properly contained
in a Yard Waste Container.

Amendment of Section 8.01. Scction 8.01 of the Agreement is amended to read in full as
follows:

The Contractor shall directly bill each Paricipating Unit for the collection of
Domeslic Solid Waste, Rear Yard Service and Yard Waste in the amounts set
forth in the Rate Sheel attached to this Amendment and marked as Exhibit A-1.
The Contractor shall not charge Paricipating Units for the collection and disposal
of Recyclable Materials. Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event of changes
in the costs of processing recyclables at the Kent County Material Recycling
Facility ($70.00 per ton as of Junc 1, 2019), actual cost increases beyond this
amount may be passed thru on the Contractor’s monthly invoice. This processing
cost is subject to change with official documentation from the Material Recycling
“acility 10 be sccured and provided by the Contractor to the City to validate any
increase. Likewise, Contractor must decrease processing costs if they are reduced
by the processing [locility. Changes will be reflected in the following month’s
invoices (example: May increase/decrease reflected in June's invoice).

Addition of Section 8.05. Section 8.05 is added to the Agreement to read in

The Rates charged pursuant to the Rate Sheet may, upon thitty (30) days written
notice, be increased due to actual additional taxcs, charges, surcharges, and/or

[09205-004-00097240 1)

full as



fees imposed by governmental authoritics on the Contractor, the Collection
Service or the Disposal Site following the date hereof, or due 1o laws, regulations
or ordinances which are adopted or changed (including a change in interpretation
or enforcement) following the date hercof, which have the actual effect of
increasing the provision of the Collection Services or the costs 1o the Disposal
Site, whether prospeclively or retroactively, to the Contractor. The term “Rate™
as used in the Agreement may include a requested adjustment made pursuant to
the immediately preceding sentence. The Contractor shall not be entitled to any
increase to the Rate associated with its violations of law, regulations, ordinances,

or permit conditions.
5. Addition of Section 11.08. Section 11.08 is added 1o the Agreement to read in full as
follows:

Notwithslanding any provision to the contrary herein, the City shall have the right
to terminate the Agreement in its sole discretion upon first providing the
Contractor with not less than 90 days® prior written notice.

6. Amendment of Section 13.01. Section 13.01 of the Agreement is amended 10 read in full
as follows:

The term of this Agreement as amended shall be from Oclober I, 2019 until
October 1, 2024,

7. Remainder of Apreement in Effect. Except as expressly sct forth in this Amendment, all
original terms and conditions in the Agreement shall remain binding on the parties and in full
force and efTect.

CITY OF SAUGATUCK

REPUBLIC SERVICES OF HOLLAND

—

By: /-VVV(—'ﬁ
Tom MahoneY

hs: _ (oneml ,‘J_arm.:; €

{098D5.D03-0009724 1 1)



REPUBLIC &

R
Fo
?}ﬁ SEAVICES

Exhibit A
Rate Sheet
Effective Octoberl, 2019

Rates for City of Saugatuck Collection and Disposal of
Rubbish/Refuse/Garbage and Collection and Recycling of

Recyclable Materials.
2019-2024
Monthly Service Rate per Residential Customer for 12-Months
Pickup Frequency Yearl Year2 Year3 Year4 Year5

2015-2020 | 2020-2021 | 2021-2022 | 2022-2023 | 2023-2024
32 GAL WEEKLY [Curbside) s 1247 |5 12918 1336(S$S 1383|% 1431
96 GAL WEEKLY [Curbside) s 13.92|% 14418 14915 1543 § 15.97
REAR YARD P/UP [Additlonal Cost) s 970|% 10045 1039[S 107515 1113
YARD WASTE (April thru November} 5 142.19|$ 147.17|5 15232}% 157.65]5 163.17

96 GAL RECYCLE (1x Every 4 Weeks) Intluvded Included Included Included Included

Note: Price are based on current fuels cast bosed on $4.75 per gallon for diese!

** Seasonal trash service Is avallable for a minimum perlod of six months.
Seasonal service must be paid In advance.




CITY COUNCIL
CITY OF SAUGATUCK
ALLEGAN COUNTY, MICHIGAN

ORDINANCE NUMBER 080922-1

Council Member Johnson, supporied by Council Member Hess moved the adoption of the
following ordinance:

ORDINANCE NO. 080922-1

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CITY CODE BY AMENDING CHAPTER 50
ENTITLED “GARBAGE AND RUBBISH”

THE CITY OF SAUGATUCK ORDARNS:

Section 1, Amendment of Chapter 50 of Title V.

Chapter 50 of Title V Public Works is hereby amended in its entirety to reflect the following language.
CHAPTER 50: GARBAGE AND RUBBISH

Section:

50.01 Purpose and Intent

50.02 Definitions

50.03 Disposal of Solid Waste Generally
50.04 Accumulation of Solid Waste

50.05 Unauthorized Dumping and Littering
50.06 Pre-Collection Requirements; Separation; Containers
50.07 Receptacles

50,08 Contracts

50.09 Transportation of Waste Materials
50.10 Fees

50.11 Prohibited Waste

50.12 Enforcement

50.13 Penallies

50.14 Rules and Regulations

50.1 Purpose and Intent. It is the intent of the City Council that this chapter be liberally
construed for the purpose of providing sanitary and satisfactory methods of preparation, collection and
disposal of domestic solid waste and materials, as well as the maintenance of public and private property
in a clean, orderly and sanitary condition, for the health, safety and welfare of the City, and to provide for
a reasonable system of user fees. Upon approval of the City Council, the City Manager is authorized to
make such rules and regulations as appear to be necessary from time to time lo carry out the intent of this
chapter; provided, however, that such rules are not in direct conflict with City ordinances or State law.

50.02 Definitions. The following words, terms and phrases shall have the meanings ascribed to
them in this chapter, except where the context clearly indicates a different meaning:



Bulk Refuse means appliances, furniture and other bulky refuse items, excluding construction and
demolition debris, which cannot readily be placed in an approved container.

Commercial Establishment means property classified by the City's Zoning Ordinance as a
nonindustrial business, or residential property which has more than four units.

Construction Debris means waste from buildings, driveways, or other construction, alteration or
repair, including dirt from excavations.

Contractor means a designated collector who bas been authorized by the City to collect and
dispose of Domestic Solid Waste, Recyclable Materials, Bulk Refuse and Yard Waste.

Discarded Household Debris means domestic refuse of a quantity that exceeds the amount
generated by routine housekeeping, including for example, unsold garage sale items and itlems
discarded in the process of vacating a premises. Discarded household debris does not include
bulk refuse for which removal arrangements bave been made.

Demolition Debris means refuse which is incidental to the demolition of buildings, or structures
or appurienances on a premises.

Domestic Solid Waste means the waste materials resulting from the usual routine of
housekeeping, including garbage and rubbish and excluding hazardous waste, construction and
demolition debris, industrial solid waste and medical waste.

Garbage means all animals, fish, fowl, fruit or vegetable waste incidental to the use, preparation
and storage of food for human consumption. This term does not include food processing wastes
from canneries, slaughterhouses and packinghouses or hazardous waste.

Grease Inceptor Waste means grease and other wastes required to be collected by inceptors in
accordance with the sewer regulations found in Section 51.083 of the City Code.

Hazardous Waste means hazardous waste as defined in Part IIl of the Michigan Natural
Resources and Environmental Prolection Act, as amended, MCL 324.11101, et seq., and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

Industrial Solid Waste means all solid waste materials resulting from industrial or manufacturing
operations or process of every nature, including organic wastes from canneries, slaughterhouses,
packinghouses and other industrial food processing operations. This terms includes refuse
material resulting from cleaning up in connection with such industrial or manufacturing
operations, and refusc material resulting from offices, stores, lunchrooms, warehouses, or other
operations established in conjunction with such industrial or manufacturing operations, and
excludes hazardous waste.

Medical Waste means any material that has been identified by State or Federal regulation to be
medical, biohazardous, or pathological waste and is subject to special handling and disposal
regulations.

Multiple Residential means residential establishments consisting of five or more residential units.

Non-portable Receptacle means a stationary dumpster of a type that can be mechanically hoisted by a
refuse collection vehicle, and with specifications established and approved by the City and the necessities



of health and safety, Non-portable receptacles shall be of all-weather material of a sufficient size and
capacity to eliminate overflowing, and secured to prevent unauthorized access.

Participating Unit means any premises receiving services from the Contractor.

Persop in Charge means the owner, propriclor, occupant or agent in charge of any premise,
whether an individual, partnership or corporation or business entity.

Premises means 2 parcel of land within the City, which includes right-of-way or legal easements,
separated from adjacent parcels of land by legal description.

Recyclable Materials means materials separated from solid waste for the express purpose of
preparation for and delivery to a secondary market or other use. For purposes of this chapter,
recyclable materials shall at a minimum include plastic bottles, polystyrene, newsprint, container
glass, tin/steel cans, aluminum, aerosol cans, corrugated cardboard boxes, magazines and junk
mail. Additional recyclable materials may be collected, provided that said materials are properly
collected, transported and recycled in accordance with all applicable laws and regulations.

Refuse means the same as Solid Waste.

Residential Unit means a building, or portion thereof, designated for occupancy exclusively for
residential purposes and having cooking facilities and separate sanitary facilities.

Rubbish means the miscellaneous waste materials resulting from housekeeping and ordinary
mercantile enterprises, including materials such as packing boxes, cartons, excelsior, paper ashes,
cinders, glass, metal, plastic and rubber, and excluding hazardous waste.

Solid Waste means garbage and rubbish. This term does not include human body waste, liquid
waste, materials that have been separated cither at the source or a processing site for the purpose
of reuse, recycling or composting, or any material that has been identified by State or Federal
regulation to be unsuitable for disposal in a Type II sanitary landfill or its State designated
equivalent.

Type 11 Sanitary Landfill means as defined in Part 115 of Public Act No. 451 of 1994, as
amended from time to time, or a state equivalent designation.

Yard Waste means grass clippings, brush trimmings and branches under six inches. Yard waste
does not include leaves.

Yard Waste Container means a container which has been specifically identified by the City as
suitable for the collection and disposal of yard waste.

Yard Waste Collection means the collection yard waste service provided by the Contractor from
April 1* to November 30" of each year.

50.03 Disposal of Solid Waste Generally. A person shall dispose of his solid waste and
segregale items as provided in this chapter, or as specified by subsequent resolution of the City Council,
from all other solid waste produced and shall separately bundle or contain such items for proper disposal
and collection, in accordance with the provisions set forth in this chapter.

50.04 Accumulation of Solid Waste



A. Accumulation of Refuse or Garbage. No owner and/or person in control of a residential
unit, commercial establishment or industrial facility shall permit the accumulation of refuse, garbage or
Solid Waste upon his premises for & period that would pose a health hazard, subject adjacent property
occupants to unrcasonably offensive odors or become a public nuisance. The accumulation of refuse,
garbage or Solid Waste for a period in excess of seven days shall be prima facie evidence of posing a
health hazard and creating a public ouisance.

B. Composting Storage. Leaves, yard waste and vegelable waste may be stored for
composting purposes as long as they do not harbor rodents, subject adjacent property owners to an
unreasonably offensive odor or become a public nuisance, provided compost is stored in the rear yard and
located not closer than ten feet from the property line.

C. Alternate Means of Disposal. Residential units that are not Participaling Units are
required to provide alternative means of disposing of solid waste. Only a designated collector can collect
and transport domestic solid waste in the City.

50.05 Unauthorized Littering and Depositing of Refuse. Except as permitted by the City's brush
and leaf pickup policy, it shall be unlawful for any person to throw or deposit any refuse upon or into any
street, right-of-way, alley or waterway. It is also unlawful to place or permit the placement of any portable
or non-portable container upon another’s property, public or private, without the permission of the owner,
proprietor, occupant or agent in charge of such property. Even with such permission, portable containers
not belonging to a Participating Unit shall not be placed or permitted upon the property of a Participating
Unit for disposal by the designated collector without the designated collector’s express consent.

50.06 Pre-Collection Requirements; Separation; Containers

A. Pre-Collection; Separation and Container Regulation. All persons within the City who
place the following items for disposal, removal or collection shall do so in strict conformity with the
following regulations:

1 Solid Waste. Solid waste shall be separated and contained in an approved
container,

2 Yard Waste. Yard waste shall be separated as required by the City and contained
in an approved container.

3 Bulk Refuse. All bulk refuse shall be separated and must be removed using an
approved method. Approved methods of removal shall be limited 1o:

a. Amangements with the Contractor; or

b. Privale arrangemenis to transfer the bulk refuse to an appropriate
disposal site or facility.

4  Recyclable material. All recyclable material shall be separated and contained in
a recycling container furnished by the Contractor.

5 Industrial Solid Waste. All industrial solid waste shall be collected by collectors
privately contracted for by the industrial user, and shall otherwise comply with
the provisions of this chapter.



6 Discarded Household, Construction and Demolition Debris. All discarded
household, construction and demolition debris shall be separated and collected by
contraclors privately contracted for by the person who produced the waste, and
shall otherwise comply with the provisions of this chapter.

7 Hazardous Waste. All hazardous waste shall be separated and collected by
collectors privately contracted for by the person who produced the waste, and
shall otherwise comply with the provisions of this chapter.

8 Medical Waste. All medical waste shall be separated and disposed of in
accordance with all applicable state and federal regulations and shall be
collected by contraclors privately contracted for by the person who produced the
waste, and shall otherwise comply with the provisions of this Section.

9 Grease Inceptor Waste. All grease inceptor waste shall be separated and disposed
of in accordance with all applicable state and federal regulations and shall be
collected by contractors privately contracted for by the person who produced the
waste, and shall otherwise comply with the provisions of this Section.

B. Use of Unapproved Contaipers. Items placed in an unapproved container will not be
picked up, unless otherwise provided in this chapter.

50.07 Receptacles

A Maintenance. The owner, person in charge, or occupant of a building, house or structure
where Domestic Solid Waste accumulates shall maintain proper refuse receptacles as defined in this
chapter, and shall place, or cause to be placed, in such receptacles all Domestic Solid Waste accumulating
on the premises, provided that Bulk Refuse, Recyclable Materials and Yard Waste may be stored in a
condition properly prepared for collection as specified in this chapter.

B. Residential. The person in charge of every residential building having four or less
residential units shall maintain and keep clean proper receplacles 1o house domestic waste.

C. Commercial. Industrial and Multiple Residential. The person in charge of a building
consisting of five or more residential units, and every building used as a commercial or industrial
business, shall provide and keep clean and in place proper receptacles of a portable type as defined in this
chapler, provided that if the City delermines that portable receptacles are not practical for a multiple
dwelling, commercial or industrial business, it may authorize the use of non-poriable receptacles as
defined in this chapter,

D. Portable Receptacles. Portable receplacles for Domestic Sold Waste shall be of metal,
fiberglass, plastic or other substantial consiruction approved by the City. Such receptacles shall have
handles and tight fitling covers and shall not exceed 96 gallons each in capacity.

E. Non-portable Receptacles. It shall be the responsibility of the property owner or agent
being serviced to maintain the non-portable receptacle area free of odors, scattered or overflowing debris
and all other nuisances. All garbage shall be properly wrapped or placed within a closed plastic bag
before it is placed in a non-portable receptacle. The City may at any time order the relocation or
screening of a dumpster if it is deemed to be interfering with the health, safety or well being of others.



F. Location. All non-portable receptacles shall be placed and collected in a location
designated by the City. Such receptacles shall be located so that the permitted collectors will not have to
trespass on the private property of another in order to pick up such receptacles. In no event shall non-
portable receptacles be placed in or upon public property, casements, or public right-of-ways. All
portable receptacles shall be stored upon the premises, and shall not be set out for collection prior to
12:00 p.m. preceding the day of collection, and afier the receptacles are emptied they shall be returned to
their place of storage on the same day collections are made. No empty portable receptacles shall be
stored on City property including the public right-of-way, sidewalks and streets.

G. Non-Conforming Receptacles. Receplacies that are badly broken or otherwise fail to
meet the requirements of this chapter may be classified as rubbish and, after due notice to the owner, may
be collected as rubbish by the Contractor.

50.08 Coantracts

A, Grant of Exclusive Coptract. The City shall by resolution grant an exclusive, revocable
contract to a designated collector, giving it the right, power and authority to collect Domestic Solid
Waste, Recyclable Materials, Bulk Refuse and Yard Waste as described herein within the City. The
designated collector shall receive no compensation from the City but shall be permitted to enter into
private contracts for the collection of solid domestic waste and other services authorized herein.

B. Renewal of Contract. Any agreement the City enters into with the designated collector,
or renewal extension or amendment therelo, is subject lo revocation at the will of the City Council.

50.09 Transpodation of Waste Materials

A. Mode of Transportation. The transportation of all garbage, offal or rubbish or other
wasie materials through the streets, alleys or thoroughfares of the City shall be conducted in 2 manner
which does not create a nuisance. It shall be unlawful for any person to transport, cart, carry or convey
through or over any of the streets, alieys or public places of the City any unwanted garbage, refuse, or
food containers without the approval of the City. It shall be unlawful for any person to transport or
otherwise convey through or over any of the street or public places of the City any rubbish or other waste
material, except under written regulations or with the written consent of the City, except rubbish or waste
material accumulating on property owned or controlled by him, and then only by approved methods of
conveyance,

B. Conveyance Vehicles. Vehicles conveying waste must be of such constraction and
operated in such a manner that the contents shall not spill upon the public right-of-way or public property.
Such vehicles shall be watertight and covered,

50.10 Fees. Charges for the collection and disposal of domestic solid waste and materials shall
be billed by the designated collector directly to the Residential Unit or Participating Unit owner or
occupant at a rate outlined in the collector’s contract with the City.

50.11 Prohibited Waste

A. Prohibited Waste. It shall be unlawful for any person to place any material in a container
or receptacle which might endanger the collection personnel, or to deposit or deliver to a disposal site any
hazardous material, waste material which would be detrimental to the normal operation of collection,
incineration, recycling or disposal, such as gaseous, solid or liquid poison, dead animals, ammunition,
explosives, flammable liquid, undrained garbage of a liquid or semi-liquid nature, whether in containers



or not, concrete, dirt, automobile or equipment parts, or any material that possesses heat sufficient 10
ignite any other collected materials. No motor vehicles shall be dumped or abandoned at any disposal
site,

B. Prohibited Placement. It shall be unlawful for any person to place Yard Waste, Bulk
Refuse, Hazardous Waste or other waste specifically required to be separated from Solid Waste by this
chapier, in a Refuse Container for the purpose of refuse collection, removal or disposal, or not otherwise
dispose of such item, except in conformance with the provisions of this Section.

C. Use by Nonresidents. The City solid waste disposal and recycling program is designated
to accommodate the needs of residents of the City. Nonresidents are stricily prohibited from disposing of
solid waste through the program. All violators will be prosecuted 1o the fullest extent allowed by law
and/or provision of this chapter.

50.12 Enforcement

Enforcement of this chapter shall be the responsibility of the City Manager or his designee, The
City is authorized and directed to establish and promulgate reasonable regulations as to the matter, days
and times for the collection of waste or recyclable matedals, The City Council may, by majority vote,
change, modify, repeal or amend any portion of this chapter. Designated City Officials charged with the
enforcement of this chapter may be authorized to issue citations or notices for violations relative to any
part of this chapter.

50.13 Penalties

A Any person, firm, corporation, trust, parinership or other legal entity which violates or
refuses to comply with any provision of this chapter shail be responsible for 2 municipal civil infraction
and shall be punished by a civil fine in accordance with Section 10.21 of this code and shall further be
liable for the payment of the costs of prosecution in any amount of not less than $9 and not more than
£500.

B. Each day that a violation of this chapter continues to exist shall constitute a distinct and
separate offense, and shall make the violator liable for the imposition of fines for each day.

(of Any violation of the provisions of this chapter shall constitute a nuisance per se and the
foregoing penalties shall be in addition to the abatement of the violating condition and injunctive or other
relief which may be ordered by the court as prescribed by the laws of the state of Michigan for the
abatement of a city ordinance designated as a municipal civil infraction.

50.14 Rules and Repulations
The City may promulgate rules and regulations to carry out the provisions of this chapter.
Seclion 2. Severability

If any section, subsection, paragraph, sentence, clause, phrase or portion of this chapter is, for any
reason, beld invalid or unconstitutional by any court of competent jurisdiction, such portion shall be
deemed a separate, distinct and independent provision and such holding shall not affect the validity of the
remaining portion thereof.



Section 3. Effective Dale
This Ordinance shall become effective 7 days afier ils publication.
Yeas: _ Johnson, Hess, Bekken, Spangler, Verplank, Simon & Vettori

Nays: _None
Absent: None

ORDINANCE NQO. 080922-1/DECLARED ADOPTED.

T [one, Vall

I hereby certify the foregoing to be a true copy of an ordinance duly adopted at a regular meeting
of the City Coungil of the City of Saugatuck on September 22, 2008.

G

Adopled: September 22, 2008
Published: October 3, 2008
Effective: October 10, 2008

Legal Publishing: September 29, 2008




CITY COUNCIL
CITY OF SAUGATUCK
Allegan County, Michigan

RESOLUTION NO. 080922-A

A RESOLUTION TO APPROVE A WASTE SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH
CHEF CONTAINER

Council Member Hess, offered the following resolution and moved for its adoption, seconded
by Council Member Verplank:

WHEREAS, the City of Saugatuck has determined that it is in best interests of the residents
of Saugatuck to utilize a single, designated waste services contractor for the collection, transport and
disposal of certain domestic waste and other discarded materials; and

WHEREAS, the City has amended its Garbage and Rubbish Ordinance to provide for a
designated contractor to perform such services; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has selected Chef Container, LLC (“Contractor”) as the
designated contractor; and

WHEREAS, the City and Contractor desire to enter into an agreement pertaining to said
services,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AS FOLLOWS:

1. The City and Contractor agree to enter into the Waste Services Agreement attached and
incorporated herein as Exhibit A (the “Agreement™).

2. The City Council hereby approves the Agreement.

3. The Mayor is authorized to execute the Agreement and all related documents necessary to
effectuate the intent of this Resolution.

4. All resolutions and parts of resolutions, insofar as they conflict with the provisions of this
Resclution, are rescinded.

YEAS: Council Members: Hess, Verplank, Bekken, Simon, Spangler, Johnson & Vettori

NAYS: Council Members: None

ABSENT: Council Members: None




RESOLUTION NO. 080922-A DECLARED ADOPTED.

Dated: September 22, 2008

iga

Uo\ojlf\n, City Clerk

I, Monica Looman, the duly appointed clerk of the City of Sangatuck do hereby certify the
foregoing is a true and complete copy of a resolution adopted by the Saugatuck City Council at a
regular meeting held September 22, 2008, in compliance with the Open Meetings Act, Act No. 267
of the Public Acts of Michigan, 1976, as amended, the minutes of the meeting were kept and will be
or have been made available as required by said Act. /

/
i

Méhipk ﬁ@ﬁn, City Clerk

CERTIFICATION




WASTE SERVICES AGREEMENT

Effective this 22nd day of September, 2008, this Agreement (“Agreement”) is made by and
between the City of Saugatuck (the “City”), a Mi chigan municipal corporation with offices located at
102 Butler Street, Saugatuck, MI 49453 and Chef Container, LLC, a Michigan limited liability
company, whose address is A-4368 60" Street, Holland Michigan 49423 (the “Contractor™).

Recitals

A. The City has amended its Garbage and Rubbish Ordinance, Ordinance No. 080922-1
to provide for a single contractor to collect, transport and dispose of domestic garbage and other
refuse materials within the City (“Ordinance™). This Agreement is entered into pursuant to such
Ordinance.

B. The City desires to enter into an exclusive, revocable contract with Contractor forthe
collection, transport and disposal of certain garbage, trash, refuse, recyclable materials and other
discarded materials from residences and participating units within the City, all as provided in this
Agreement.

C. The Contractor desires to enter into a contract with the City to provide such
collection, transportation, disposal and recycling services pursuant to the Contractor’s bid proposal,
the terms and conditions set forth in the City’s Request for Proposal, the Ordinance and provisions of
this Agreement (collectively, the “Services™).

D. Therefore, in consideration of the mutval covenants and considerations set forth
herein, the parties agree as follows:

Agreement

1.0 Definitions. All words or phrases not defined herein shall have the same meaning
given to such words and phrases by the Ordinance, as may be amended from time to time, which
Ordinance is incorporated herein by reference for such purpose,

20  Collection of Domestic Solid Waste, Bulk Refuse, Recyclable Materials and Yard

Waste.

2.01 The Contractor shall collect, transport, and dispose of all Domestic Solid Waste from
all Residential Units and other Participating Units within the City subject to the terms of this
Agreement and the Ordinance.

2,02 The Contractor shall collect and transport Recyclable Materials, Yard Waste and Bulk
Refuse from a Participating Unit upon the request of the owner or occupan! of the Participating Unit



and shall deliver the same as follows: Recyclable Materials shall be delivered to an appropriate
recycling facility, Yard Waste shall be delivered to an appropriate disposal, recycling, or composting
facility; and Bulk Refuse shall be delivered to a properly licensed solid waste disposal facility. The

Contractor shall be solely responsible to bill and collect its charges for such services from such
OWnNers Or occupants,

2.03  The Contractor shall enter the Premises of a Parlicipating Unit upon request by the
owner or occupant in order to collect Domestic Solid Waste, Bulk Refuse, Recyclable Materials
and/or Yard Waste from a designated location (“Rear Yard Service”). The designated location shall
be outdoors and readily accessible. Rear Yard Service includes returning empty Refuse, Recyclable
Material, and Yard Waste Containers to the designated location. Participating Units shall pay an
additional charge for Rear Yard Service.

2.04  The Contractor shall provide the Services in a uniform manner to all Participating
Units. If the Contractor requires owners or occupants of Participating Units to enter into a written
agreement for any Service provided, Contractor shall do so using a written agreement which
comports with this Agreement and the Ordinance and has been approved by the City.

2.05 The Contractor agrees that al] Services provided herein, including without limitation
collection, transportation, and disposal activities shall be conducted in accordance with applicable
Michigan and federal laws and all ordinances, rules, and regulations of the City.

2.06 The Contractor agrees that all Domestic Solid Waste, Yard Waste and Bulk Refuse
collected pursuant to this Agreement shall be disposed of only in licensed landfills and in accordance
with all applicable Michigan and federal law and regulations and all ordinances, and regulations of
the City. The Contractor agrees that all Recyclable Materials shall be prepared for and delivered to a
secondary market (which may include a lawfully operating recycling facility) in accordance with all
applicable Michigan and federal law and regulations and all ordinances and regulations of the City.
The Contractor shall obtain and maintain ali licenses, permits or other approvals required by law to
perform its Services pursuant to this Agreement.

2,07 The Contractor shall defend, indemnify, and save harmless the City, and its
departments, public officials and officers, agents, and employees from and against any fine, penalty,
costs, or other charge (including without limitation, court costs and attorney fees) arising out of or in
connection with the Contractor’s Services or its failure to comply with all applicable laws, ruies, and
regulations governing the collection, transportation and delivery of all Domestic Solid Waste and
other materials collected pursuant to this Agreement. Upon request of the City, the Contractor shall
provide written documentation evidencing proper transportation and disposal of all materials
collected by the Contractor pursuant to this Agreement. The Contractor’s duties and obligations
under this Section shall survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement.

2.08 During the term of this Agreement, unless earlier terminated in accordance with the
provisions hereof, the Contractor shall have the exclusive, revocable right to provide the Services to
Participating Units in the City.



3.0  Collection Schedule: Publication of Notice.

3.01 Regular collection shall take place each Monday morming no earlier than 7:00 a.m.,
except in the event of an emergency when so authorized by the City Manager. All collection and
toute schedules and amendments thereto are subject to the prior written approval of the City
Manager.

3.02  Regular collection shall not take place on a holiday. In the event a holiday falls on a
Monday, the collection service day that week will be on Tuesday. If the holiday falls on any other
day, the collection service day will remain unchanged. For purposes of this Section 3, ‘holiday’

means New Year’s Day, Memorial Day, Fourth of July, Labor Day, Thanksgiving and Christmas
Day.

3.03 The Contractor shall make no changes to its schedules or operation affecting the City
without receiving written approval from the City Manager at least thirty (30) days prior to the
implementation of such a change. The Contractor shall assist the City, either financially or in a
manner acceptable to the City, with the dissemination of notices to residents of the changes.

3.04 The Contractor shall offer Yard Waste collection service within the City at a
minimum of 4 pick-ups per months from April 1 through November 30. If the volume of Yard
Waste collected increases enough, as reasonably determined by the City, to warrant additiona)
pickups, the City shall coordinate the date with the Contractor. The Contractor shall monitor and
keep record of the number of yard waste containers being collected. This information shall be made
available to the City upon request.

4.0 Containers; Method of Collection.

401  The Contractor, at its own expense, shall provide Participating Units with the
following:

1) 32 or 96 gallon solid waste container(s) that are clean, watertight, and insect and vermin
proof (**Refuse Containers™);

2) 96 gallon containers for Yard Waste (“Yard Waste Containers™); and

3) Recyclable Materials containers in such quantities as may be requested by the owner or
occupant.

The Contractor shall not be required to collect any Domestic Solid Waste if not properly
contained in a Refuse Container. The Contractor agrees that a trash bag up to 32 gallons and
containing up to 50 pounds of Domestic Solid Waste may be placed in a Refuse Container. Further,
Contractor agrees that a 96 gallon Refuse Container may contain up to 250 pounds of Domestic Solid

Waste. The Contractor shall not be required to collect any Yard Waste not properly contained in a
Yard Waste Container.



4.02  Containers damaged through the negligence or carelessness of the owner or occupant
of a Participating Unit shall be replaced by the Contractor and the cost thereof may be charged to the
owner or occupant. The Contractor will replace, at its own expense and at no cost to the owner or
occupant of a Participating Unit, Containers which are stolen, which have been damaged by the
Contractor’s vehicles or which become damaged or unusable through normal wear and tear.

5.0 Furher Obligations of the Contractor.

5.01 The Contractor shall provide safe, clean, compaction type collection trucks displaying
Contractor’s name. All equipment used by the Contractor shall be maintained in a safe and
reasonably clean condition at all times, and operated and in a manner which does not create a
nuisance. Collection trucks shall not be parked on City streets except as is reasonably necessary in
connection with the provision of Services. Collection trucks of an appropriate size shall be used to
provide Services on streets that are narrower than typical city streets, including but not limited 1o
Vine Street, Lakeview Drive and Shorewood Drive.

5.02  All facilities, vehicles, and equipment used by Contractor shall meet all federal and
state of Michigan requirements for safety and sanitation. The Contractor shall maintain an adequate
number of vehicles and employees to provide the Services.

5.03 The Contractor shall comply with all Michigan and federal laws, regulations and
executive orders relating to hiring, hours of work, manner of pay, workers’ compensation and
unemployment benefits.

5.04¢ ' The Contractor shall hire and pay its employees as employees of the Contractor.
Persons hired by the Contractor shall not be decmed to be employees of or otherwise in any joini
venture or other relationship with the City.

5.05 The Contractor shall be responsible for, and the City shall bear no responsibility for,
the assessment, billing, processing, and the collection of all charges imposed by the Contractor upon
Participating Units. The Contractor may use only lawful means of collecting or attempting to collect
delinquent charges owed by the owner or occupant of a Participating Unit. If the Contractor
suspends Services to a Participating Unit as a result of nonpayment of charges due to the Contractor,
the Contractor shall notify the City Manager seven (7) days prior to the suspension of service and
shall provide written justification for the suspension of service.

6.0 Scrvice Investigation and Complaints.

6.01  The Contractor shall maintain an adequately staffed office and regular office hours for
the receipt of service calls, questions and complaints regarding the Services, The Contractor agrees

to maintain regular contact with the City for the purpose of receiving and responding to such
questions and complaints.

6.02 The Contractor agrees to record all complaints and requests for investigations
received at its designated office or at the City Administrative Offices on a service investigation form



acceptable to the City Manager. The service investigation form shall indicate the date and time the
complaint or request for investigation was received, the date and time the Contractor was notified if
such complaint or request for investigation was received by the City, the name, address, and
telephone number of the complainant, and the nature of the complaint or investigation. The
Contractor shall retain two (2) copies of the service investigation form and shal) supply one (1) copy

to the City Manager or his or her designee. The Contractor agrees to provide service investigation
forms at its own expense.

6.03  Upon receipt of a complaint or request for investigation, Contractor agrees to
promptly investigate the incident and take such corrective action as is necessary to comply with its
obligations under this Agreement, and all ordinances, rules, and regulations of the City. When the
Contractor is at fault due to its negligence or carelessness, and the Contractor receives notice of the
complaint by 3:00 p.m., corrective action shall be taken within twenty-four (24) hours after the
Contractor is notificd of the incident. If the Contractor receives notice of the complaint after
3:00 p.m., corrective action shall be taken within forty-eight (48) hours aficr the Contractor is
notified of the incident. In the event of a difference of opinion as to the validity of the complaint or

the fault or responsibility of the Contractor, the decision of the City Manager shall be binding on the
Contractor.

6.04  Upon completion of its investigation and the taking of corrective action as required by
this Section, the Contractor agrees to record the nature of the corrective action taken and the date and
time of such action on the remaining two (2) copies of the service investigation form in its
possession. The Contractor shall retain one (1) copy of the completed service investigation form and
deliver the remaining one (1) copy to the City Manager or his or her designee.

7.0 Obligations of the City.

7.01  The City shall provide to the Contractor a list of Residential Units within the City.

7.02  The City shall notify Participating Units, except for Participating Units receiving Rear
Yard Service, to place Refuse Containers, Recyclable Material containers, Bulk Refuse and other
items to be collected by Contractor at the front of the curb line of the Participating Unit in plain view
of the roadways.

8.0  Compensation.

8.01 The Contraclor shall directly bill each Participating Unit for the collection of
Domestic Solid Waste, Rear Yard Service and Yard Waste in the amounts set forth in the rate sheet
incorporated herein and attached as Exhibit A. The Contractor shall not charge Participating Units
for the collection and disposal of Recyclable Materials.

8.02  The Contractor shall be entitled to compensation for collecting Bulk Refuse in such
amounts as it typically charges, as agreed by the Participating Unit.

8.03  Participating Units shall be offered various payment options for Services, including



payment by credit or debit cards.

8.04 The compensation set forth in this Section 8 shall be the only compensation paid to
the Contractor for Services performed under this Agreement.

9.0 Hold Harmless; Insurance; Letter of Credit.

9.0} The Contractor agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the City, and its
departments, public officials and officers, agents, and employees from and against any and all loss,
expense, damage, charge, claim, liability, demand and cost (including without limitation, court costs
and attorney fees) for injury to or death of persons, or injury to or destruction of property suffered or
alleged to have been suffered, arising out of or in connection with the Agreement or any act or
omission of the Contractor or any agent or employee of the Contractor in the course of the
performance of the work provided in this Agreement or to the Participating Units. The Contractor’s
obligations under this Section shall survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement.

9.02  Except for hazardous or toxic substances necessary for the operation of vehicles and
office equipment used by the Contractor in the ordinary course of business, the Contractor shall not
cause or permit any hazardous or toxic substances to be released, stored, produced, emitted, disposed
of or used in connection with the Agreement or any act or omission of the Contractor or any agent or
employee of the Contractor in the course of the performance of the Services provided per this
Agreement or to the Participating Units. As used in this section, the term “hazardous or toxic
substance or material” shall include, but not be limited to, any material or substance which is deemed
a hazardous substance pursuant to the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and
Liability Act, 42 USCA §9661 et seq. as amended, or pursuant fo the Michigan Natural Resources
and Environmental Protection Act, MCLA 324.101, et seq. as amended, and rules and regulations
promulgated under either Act. The Contractor shall hold the City harmless from, indemnify it for,
and defend it against any and all cost, claims, losses, liability, damages, administrative and criminal
proceedings, or other actions as a result of the Contractor’s breach of such condition; provided,
however, that in no event shall the Contractor have any liability to the City, under this Section or
otherwise, solely as a result of the unlawful act or omission of the owner or occupant of a
Participating Unit. The Contractor’s obligations under this Section shall survive the expiration or
termination of this Agreement.

9.03 The Contractor shall secure and maintain, for the duration of the term of this
Agreement, workers’ compensation insurance, environmental liability insurance, and general liability
insurance for bodily injury and property damage in an amount not less than $1,000,000 per person
and $2,000,000 per occurrence for bodily injury, and not less than $500,000 per occurrence for
property damage. Any policy maintained 1o satisfy this requirement shall be placed with insurance
carriers fully licensed and authorized to do business in the state of Michigan. The City, its
departments, public officials and officers, employees, and agents shall be additional named insureds
on all such policies of insurance. The Contractor shall deliver said policies or certificates of
insurance to the City.

9.04  In order to secure the faithful performance of this Agreement by the Contractor, no



later than the effective date of this Agreement the Contractor shall deliver to the City an irrevocable

and unconditional letter of credit acceptable to the City naming the City as payee in the amount of
$10,000.

10.0 Nonperformance.

10.01 In the event that the Contractor shall fail, neglect, or refuse to perform any or all of its
duties, obligations, or responsibilities under this Agreement, the City may, after five (5) days written
notice to the Contractor, perform such duties, obligations, or agreements, or have such duties,
obligations, or agreements performed and charge all costs thereof to the Contractor, and the
Contractor shall pay all of said costs to the City. The City may also draw on the letter of credit
provided under Section 9.04 of this Agreement to defray such costs. If such failure, neglect, or
refusal continves for 30 days afier such written notice, the City shall exercise its right of termination

under Section 11.01 of this Agreement, and pursue any and all legal remedies to which it may be
entitled.

1.0 Right of Termination: Notice.

11.01 The City and Contractor shall have the right to terminate this Agreement in the event
of a material breach by the other party of any of the covenants, terms, or conditions of this
Agreemen! and such material breach or nonperformance continues for a period of 30 days after
written notice of such material breach or nonperformance is provided to the other party.

11.02 The City shall have the right to immediately terminate this Agreement in the event
that the Contractor ceases operation of its business by reason of insolvency, bankruptcy, or similar
proceeding, whether voluntary or involuntary, or for any other reason.

11.03 The City shall have the right to immediately terminate this Agreement in the event
Contractor fails to obtain or maintain any licenses, permits or other approvals required to provide the
Services or fulfill its obligations under this Agreement.

11.04 The City shall have the right to immediately terminate this Agreement in the event
Contractor is in default to the City.

11.05 In the event of a termination under Section 11.01, 11.02, 11.03 or 11.04 by the City,
the Contraclor shall be liable to the City for any damages the City sustains by virtue of Contractor's
breach of this Agreement and any reasonable costs the City might incur in enforcing or attempting to
enforce this Agreement, or in finding altemative methods for carrying out the purposes and
covenants of this Agreement including reasonable attorney fees. It is expressly understood that
Contractor shall remain liable 1o the City for any damages the City may sustain in excess of any set-
off. The City reserves the right to collect such damages, recover attorney fees and pursue specific
performance regarding the administration of this Agreement. The City acknowledges its obligation,
in the event of a termination of this Agreement, to mitigate its damages by engaging a different
contractor to render the Services as soon as reasonably practicable after the date of termination,



11.06 In addition to any other remedies available under this Agreement or at law or equity,
the prevailing party in any lawsuit between the City and the Contractor to enforce any provision of
this Agreement may recover its actual reasonable costs, including without limitation, attomeys fees
and other legal expenses incurred to investigate, bring, maintain, or defend any action from its first
accrual or first notice thereof through any and all appellate and collection proceedings. To the extent
not otherwise prohibited by law, the parties agree that the jurisdiction and venue for any action
brought pursuant to or to enforce any provision of this Agreement shall be exclusively in the state
courts in Allegan County, Michigan.

11.07 In the event of a temination of the Agreement, Contractor agrees to use its best
efforts to transition the Services to a new contractor in order for Participating Units receive
continuous and uninterrupted service.

120 Assipnment. The Contractor shall neither assign nor subcontract this Agreement or
any part thereof, to any person, firm, or organization unless said assignment or subcontract is first
approved in writing by the City. The Contractor agrees that such written approval may be granted or
withheld in the sole discretion of the City. Any attempt to assign this Agreement without prior
approval shall render the Agreement null and void.

13.0 The Term of Agreement.

13.01 The term of this Agreement shall be from October 1, 2008 through September 30,
2013.

14.0 Miscellaneous Provisions.

14.01 The terms of this Agreement may be modified, changed, or altered upon the mutual
written agreement of the Contractor and the City. No such amendment shall be effective or binding
unless it expressly makes reference to this Agreement, is in writing, and is signed by the Contractor
and duly authorized representatives of the City.

14.02 Neither the City nor the Contractor shall be considered or construed as the agent of
the other, nor shall either party have the right to bind the other in any manner whatsoever, and this
Apgreement shall not be construed as a contract of agency.

14.03 This Agreement shall be governed in all respects, whether as to validity, construction,
perfermance or otherwise, by the laws of the State of Michigan.

14.04 1f any paragraph, section, clause, or provision of this Agreement be ruled invalid or
unenforceable by any courl of competent jurisdiction, the validity or unenforceability of such

paragraph, section, clause, or provision shall not affect the validity of any and all remaining
paragraphs, sections, clauses, or provisions.

14.05 All notices, approvals, consents, requests, demands, or formal actions hereunder shall
be in writing and mailed or delivered to the following addresses:



To the City: To the Contractor:

City of Saugatuck Chef Container, LLC

102 Butler Street

P.O. Box 86 y Michigan 49
Saugatuck, Michigan 49453 Attn:

Attn:  Kirk Harrier

The City or the Contractor may by written notice to the other, designate any additional or
different addresses to which subsequent notices, approvals, consents, requests, demands, or formal
actions shall be sent.

14.05 This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties hereto with
respect to the subject matter hereof and supersedes all prior conflicting oral or written
representations, understandings, or agreements relating to the subject matter hereof. As a condition
of entering into this Agreement, the City has relied upon all representations or warranties made by
the Contractor in the course of the bidding procedure, the Agreement documents, or the discussions
and negotiations between the Contractor and the City prior to the effective date of this Agreement,
unless specifically superseded by this Agreement. However, this Agreement shall contro] with
respect to any conflict between it and the representations or warranties of the Contractor. The
Contractor acknowledges that the terms of this Agreement supersede any and all prior

representations or warranties of the City, and that the City is not bound by any terms not contained
herein.

14.06 Any failure to enforce any provision of this Agreement or waiver by the City of any
breach by the Contractor of any provision of this Agreement shall not constitute a wajver of any

other provision of this Agreement or any subsequent breach by the Contractor of any provision of
this Agreement,

By: Tony Vgifo
Its: Mayor

i
By: Monic%l,b’c;'n;' "
Its: City-Clerk

CHE};’ CONTAINER, LLC
,él.. {_ . i, (s B2 v Bee

By:
lts: yp 097G AeaBey”

420660.01



4368 60th Street

Gi«?f EXHIBIT A Holland ME 49423
ONTRINER=" 11T Tel. 616/494-0561
. BATS SEEET Fax 616/392-3431

Rates for City of Saugatuck Collection and Disposal of
Rubbish/Refuse/Garbage and Collection and Recycling of

Rec clable Materlals

g e e A S e T (R e b

Monthly Service Rate per Residential Customer For 12 Months

Thera is a discounted annual rale for residents that pay for refuse service a yearm advance
Rl “(ear' i -Year ; Yea'ﬁ! . Year§

2 .';;E.-f;'-';-- : ) b

: '- ;. 3 a4 _:;_IJ i - ke o

; u&,ﬁlckup,Frequency, e 2uoa -2009 2009 - 2010 0,10,;-‘201_11_ .-201_1_-201;2_ 20122013
32/GAL WEEKEY (Gurbslde),. $ 065]% 9.89 101418$ 1039]|% 10.65
96:GALWEEKLY: (cirbside) 2

REAR:YARD'R/UR (additional’cost) | $ 75018 7.69 78818 8.081% 8.28

[YARD:WASTE (April thru November] $ _ 110.00 $ 11275 11557 |§ 11846 % 121.42

. 5

IS 0775 11.04]$ 1132]$ 1160[5 1189
5
5

NOTE: Prices are based on current fuels costs ranging from 84.50-83.00 per pallon for dicsel,

[Services billed direct to residents |

*** Seasonal trash service is available for a minimuim period of

six months. Seasonal service must be paid in advance.

A simple cost effective solution to recycling and refuse management,



7.B.

2020 Advisory Tri-Community Recycle Ad Hoc Committee

Please take a few minutes of your time to complete the following survey for the
Recycle Committee. Our goal is to gather data that will help us to formulate ideas to
improve the recycling of materials collected within the Saugatuck, Douglas and Town
of Saugatuck communities.

Be rest assured that any information and the identity of contributors will not be
shared with any third parties.

To answer the questions please check the appropriate box or boxes, and for some
questions write in your response.

Are you answering for a;

--- residence

or

--- business

1. What community do you live in or have a business in?
--- Saugatuck

--- Douglas

--- Town of Saugatuck

2. Do you currently recycle?

--- yes

=== No

3. Who is your current hauler or service?
--- Republic

--- Arrow Waste

--- Waste Management

--~ Jay's

--- Other




4, How do you recycle?

--- A separate bin

--- Separate bags

5. How often do you recycle?
--- Daily

--- Weekly

--- Monthly

--- As needed

6. What do you recycle?

--- Paper

--- Plastic

--- Glass

--- Aluminum

--- Cloth

--- Electronics (batteries, computer materials, small appliances)
--- None

--- Other

7. Do you think your service is recycling?
-+ Y€5

--- N0

8. Why do you recycie?

--- Reduce landfill

--- Repurpose resources

--- Good for the economy

--- It’s good for the climate



9. How convenient is recycling?

--« Very

--- Somewhat

--- Bothersome

--- Don’t at all

10. What type of recycling container(s) do you use?
--- A single container separate from the garbage bin?
--« Separate containers for each type of material

--- None

11. Are you happy with the recycling procedures in use?
--- yes

--- O

If no, explain briefly why.

12. What do you think should be done to improve recycling?

--- Assurance that materials that can be recycled are.

--- Make the process more convenient.

--- Make recycle stations available within the community(scheduled
cleanup days for example)

--- Better communication of what can be recycled.

13.What do you think can be recycled?

--- Cardboard

--- Newspaper

--- Glossy magazines

--- Binders with metal

--- CD’s, DVD’s

--- Glass (clear or tinted)

--- Batteries



--- Clothing (including leather items)

--- Bound books

--- Yard waste

--- Empty food containers such as thin plastic used for lettuce

--- Household materials such as paint cans, cleaning fluid containers,
scrap lumber (small pieces), rugs, small furniture

14. What is your monthly cost for your service?

--- Less than $25

--- $25-535

--- More than $35

15. Would you be open to changing your current service?

--- yes

--- no

16.If yes, why?

--- Cost

--- Improved service

17.Do you have a contract?

--- yes

--- no

18.If yes, when does it expire?

--- In less than 6 months

--- [n more than 6 months

19. Do you compost?

--- yes

--- No

20. Would you use a community compost site?

--- yes

--- No



21. Does your service provider schedule bulk pick up of
non-recyclable items?

--- yes
--- No



